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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees'
report, and a directors' report under company law.

The trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 19 serving a catchment area which includes Faversham in Kent. It
has a pupil capacity of 1,226 (2021: 1,226) and had a roll of 1,192 (2021: 1,155) in the school census in October 2021.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives and Aims

The academy trust's object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing

a) by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing an academy offering a broad and balanced
curriculum,

b) by promoting for the benefit of the inhabitants of Faversham Kent and the surrounding area the provision of facilities for
recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who need such facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or
disablement, financial hardship or social and economic circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social
welfare and with the object of improving the condition of life of the said inhabitants.

The academy aims to:

- Ensure the school curriculum continues to meet the needs of all students and staff and continue to aspire to the
highest standards of teaching and learning in its delivery, thereby achieving our motto: “Be the best you can be".

- Provide a detailed one-year School Improvement Plan which is shared with Trustees. Each priority outlines the
target, success criteria and monitoring and evaluation‘processes.

- Provide first class CPD opportunities for all staff, teaching and support.

- Provide rigorous appraisal, setting staff high aspirational targets for attainment, achievement, teaching and learning,

and professional development.

- Provide an all-round education which encompasses PSHE provision, with a particular focus on health, sex, drugs,
life skills and citizenship education.

- Continue to provide an all-round education giving opportunities for spiritual, moral, social, and cultural education.

- Provide advice and guidance (IAG) at all levels throughout students’ education and give information and advice
which supports students' curriculum choices at KS4, KS5 and beyond to university, college, or work with training.

- Keep abreast of all government changes in curriculum and pastoral and implement accordingly.

- To continue to review this curriculum and its delivery in order to ensure it meets the needs of its students and to
encourage high aspirations and to enable all to fulfill their potential.

- To further develop the use of ICT in school and the VLE to support teaching and learning and administration.

- To monitor the use and impact of pupil premium throughout the school.

Objectives, Strateaies and Activities

The academy worked hard to achieve its aims and Trustees were kept informed through the work of committees and
reporting to the full Board of Trustees. The Headteacher provided detailed reports 3 times per year which outlined progress
against objectives and targets and all departments provided up to date information on progress and activities in their
respective areas.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17 (5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard
to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit and in particular to its supplementary public benefit
guidance on advancing education.

We have referred to the guidance in the Charity Commissions general guidance on public benefit when reviewing our aims
and objectives and in planning our future activities. In particular, the Trustees consider how planned activities will contribute
to the aims and abjectives they have set.

The public benefit of The Abbey School (Faversham) is the advancement of education within the local community.

Disabled Persons

The policy of the academy is to support recruitment and retention of students and employees with disabilities. The academy
does this by adapting the physical environment, by making support resources available and through training and career
development.

ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Leadership and Management :

The last 12 months has been an unexpected period of turbulence for the school. Ofsted visited the school in May 2022 for
a Section 5 inspection and delivered a rating of 'Inadequate’ based on behaviour and safeguarding, although confirming
that the quality of education and sixth form remained ‘good'. The Ofsted report noted that the level of compliance that
leaders expected from students was too high and that children found this 'restrictive’ and 'oppressive'. Yet, just three
months later in August 2022, the school reported record outcomes at both GCSE and A Level - completely counter to the
trend observed nationally for schools with similar levels of disadvantage and low prior attainment.

Inspectors noted that leadership and management would have been 'good’ were there not safeguarding concems which
were a 'limiting judgement’. For this reason leadership and management were rated 'inadequate’. Particular concern was
raised around bullying and students' poor attitudes towards one another during social time. Since the inspection, we have
taken a wide range of measures to strengthen our school in this area. This has included updating procedures for reporting
and dealing with bullying, retraining staff and implementing an extensive programme of personal development for students.
A peer-mentoring programme has been developed and implemented across the school and a hub has been created to co-
locate all pastoral professionals and improve communication. Extensive student voicing (i.e. focus groups and surveys)
has taken place resulting in significant improvements to the curriculum planning and implementation of PSHE.

Alongside a revised programme of character education, we have spent time with all students explaining carefully how
bullying can be reported and what action we will take as a result. Additional methods for reporting concerns have been
introduced, including an online "Worry Box'. These concerns are monitored continuously by the pastoral and safeguarding
teams. A new ‘check-in, check-up and check-out' process has been put in place so that students, that have previously
raised concerns, are checked on multiple times to ensure that those concerns have been resolved. Parental contact in all
cases has been maintained throughout. The impact of this system has meant that students are now more aware of actions
taken and are more confident that their issues have been resolved.

Whilst we acknowledge that bullying is a challenge in all schools, our current data tells us that student views on how
bullying is tackled and that of student safety is significantly improved from the description given by Ofsted in May.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Quality of Teaching, Learning and Assessment

The quality of teaching and learning was commented on extremely positively in our Section 5 inspection and awarded
'‘qood". It was highlighted that all pupils, including those with SEND, experience a broad and interesting curriculum.
Inspectors said that as 'pupils’ knowledge grows, so does their vocabulary, allowing them to think about , discuss and
debate stimulating and important topics. Pupils with SEND, including thase accessing the resource provision, are well
supported and fully included in school life.

Our classrooms and corridors around the school are consistently calm and orderly, supporting a predictable and secure
environment within which leaming can thrive. The teaching in classrooms is built around the notion of 'The Abbey Lesson’;
a set of pedagogical principles that underpin our academic improvement. These include direct instruction, traditional
teaching and high levels of support and care for students. Typically lessons in our school have a high level of knowledge
content, since we have come to appreciate that students cannot develop higher level thinking skills such as analysis and
evaluation, withiout a sound foundational understanding of their subjects. Teaching is fast paced, heavily structured and
immersive. We believe in a high level of student participation in lessons with no opt-out; this means that all children are
taking part and playing an active role in the learning.

As the concept of The Abbey Lesson has become more finely-tuned, it has supported an increasingly more consistent and
nuanced school culture in teaching and leaming. Most recently, the whole-school focus has been on lesson plenaries,
classroom transitions and cold-calling - all distinct facets of the school's approach to teaching. In each case staff have
been shown what good practice looks like and given a ‘house-style’ to use when applying these techniques.

Personal Development, Behaviour and Welfare & SMSC

Within our Section 5 inspection, the section linked to personal development was graded as ‘requires improvement’.
Inspectors told us that this was because children's attitudes towards one another during social time was poor. The school
was asked to improve its teaching of British Values, Protected Characteristics and do more to effectively tackle bullying.
As a consequence this, an action plan was implemented to specifically tackle these concerns. The way in which PSHE is
delivered was also reviewed with the intention of reducing the number of staff involved to improve consistency and quality
of delivery.

The school has added yet more structure to its school day through implementing more daily duty schedules for staff that
have been designed to remove opportunities for poor behaviour or unsafe behaviour from students. Senior staff meet daily
to review the duties, manage staff absences and discuss the planning of any exiraordinary events that might be taking
place. This additional time scrutinising the daily duty roles has removed the opportunity for any part of the school to be
unsupervised.

Assembly times have been enhanced through a series of themes that seek to target the areas of concern raised by Ofsted.
School leaders explicitly teach students how they should behave in a range of different circumstances both within and
outside the school. This is reinforced by the school's values which staff use to explain to students why our expectations
are the way that they are.

Page 5°



THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE

Raising Standards

The improvement in exam outcomes at both GCSE and A Level since 2019 is undeniable. Internal performance data for
GCSE exams in 2022 includes GCSE English Literature which is not included in the published DfE data due to this being
an early entry.

56 students left the school in summer 2022 with at least a Grade 5 in both English and Mathematics; over three times the
number reaching this measure five years earlier (i.e. 17) when the school had previously been inspected as 'good’ overall.
EBacc average point score was over a quarter of a grade better per qualification than 2019. Similarly Attainment 8 was 2
grades better overall than pre-Covid performance (or a fifth of a grade better per qualification). Outcomes in nearly every
Key Stage 4 subject increased significantly. ‘

At A Level, the A*-C pass rate increased from 40.6% (2019) to 69.7% (2022), an impressive 29.1% improvement. The
average-grade achieved per qualification was 1.5 grades better than the 2019 pre-Covid level. When the data for A Levels .
is compared with the year of the previous Ofsted inspection (2017) it is noteworthy that at that point there were zero A or
A* grades awarded, despite the sixth form being judged as 'good'. Yet today there are a number of examples of students
reaching this high level of achievement.

Within the Applied General qualifications, the pass rate increased from 41.6% (2019) to 57.6% (2022), with an
improvement of 0.7 grade per qualification. The overall sixth form data is hugely satisfying for the school community and
a huge vindication of the journey that the school has been on.

Key Financial Performance Indicators
The academy had 1,192 students on roll during the 2021/2022 year.

Key Stage 4

Attainment 8 was 39.28 (Average Grade 4) - 37.3 in 2019

48% achieved at least 5 grades 94 including English and Mathematics - 43% in 2019
26% achieved a strong pass in English and Mathematics - 25% in 2019

55% achieved a standard pass in English and Mathematics - 50% in 2019

12% achieved the English Baccalaureate - 11% in 2019

Key Stage 5

" 69% achieved grades A*-C - 40% in 2019

12% achieved grades A*-A - 0.68 in 2019

Academic Average Points Score 29.29 - 17.72in 2019
Applied General Average Points Score 31.31 - 25.69 in 2019

Results compared with 2019 as this was the last set of public examinations before Covid-19
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Position

The academy's accounting period covers a twelve-month trading period from 31 August 2021 to 31 August 2022. The
majority of the academy's income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency in the form of recurrent grants,
the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the period ended
31 August 2022 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

‘The academy also received grants for fixed assets from the ESFA, via the local authority and other sources. In accordance
with the Charities Statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and Reporting by Charities” (SORP 2019), such
grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the restricted fixed assets fund. The
- restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concemed. :

The academy has also received income from its leisure activities.

During the year under review, total expenditure of £9,451,787 (2021: £9,137,473) was covered by recurrent grant funding
from the DfE together with other incoming resources. The surplus of income over expenditure for the period (excluding
restricted fixed asset funds and the pension deficit) was £331,058 (2021: £264,859).

At 31 August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £15,509,089 (2021: £16,027,748) and movements in tangible
fixed assets are shown in note 18 to the financial statements. A

Key Financial Performance Indicators:

31.8.22 31.8.21

Educational wages per pupil enrolled £4,738 £4,705
Total wages ex sports centre as a percentage of GAG funding - 101% 96%
Total wages ex sports centre as a percentage of total revenue grants 75% 7%

Going Concern .
The Board of Trustees is confident that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence fo
the foreseeable future. In the financial year 2022/23, despite a reduction in 6th Form numbers, the academy has received
a significant rise in funding as increased numbers of students are moving into Year 7 and Key Stage 4, as well as support
from the Local Authority with regards to basic needs.

~ However, as a result of an OFSTED inspection in May 2022, the academy received an ‘inadequate’ judgement for
concems regarding safeguarding. The Regional Director issued a Warning Notice stating that, unless they are satisfied

——that-the-trust has capacity-to-deliver-rapid-and-sustainable-improvement, they-would-consider-terminating the academy's-- -

funding agreement in order to transfer the academy to an altemative trust.

The school made written representation to the Regional Director in October 2022 concerning the progress that had been
made to address the concems that OFSTED had raised. The Regional Director concluded that the improvements made
could only be sustained in their opinion with the support of another strong Multi Academy Trust. They concluded that the
Abbey School should be transferred out of The Abbey School (Faversham) trust into another MAT by May 2023. The
Board of Trustees on 16 November 2022 voted to support the transfer decision. Once the Abbey School has been
transferred out of the trust the Trustees will wind up the company. This has not however had an impact on the carrying
value of assets because the assets and liabilities of the trust will be gifted to the new multi academy trust at their carrying
values at the date of transfer as The Abbey School's activities will continue uninterrupted. For this reason the trustees
have prepared the financial statements on a Going Concern basis with appropriate disclosures.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Investment Policy and Objectives
The academy is limited to the amount of reserves that it is able to hold and in general these need to be readily accessible.
The practice is, therefore, to keep any reserves in an interest-bearing bank account.

Reserves Policy

Itis the Trustees' objective to maintain a structure of prudent financial management. To this end we aim to carry forward
an amount of reserves, so that the academy can best protect and plan its current and future operating activities. The
Trustees consider that this amount is equal to 3% of GAG or £183,417. The academy currently has free reserves of -
£33,494 (2021: £41,164) after accounting for £200,000 (2021: £175,000) which has been designated for the 3G pitch
sinking fund. The restricted general funds are £732,316 (2021: £431,898) (before accounting for the pension liability).
Restricted general funds, excluding the pension reserve plus unrestricted funds were £965,810 at the year-end (2021:

£648,062). The trust continues to work towards its target level of reserves

Restricted funds (excluding restricted fixed asset funds) at 31 August 2022 show a deficit of £313,272 (2021: deficit
£172,406) this is after accounting for the deficit on the local government pension scheme. The deficit on the scheme as at
31 August 2022 was £591,000 (2021: £4,662,000). It should be noted however that this deficit will not crystallise in the
foreseeable future and that the academy follows the advice of the pension scheme actuary and makes contributions in
accordance with the rates advised. This level of contributions has been taken into account when preparing the academy's
budgets for the year ending 31 August 2022.

Total funds at 31 August 2022 are £15,857,349 (2021: £12,122,108).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risk and uncertainty in respect of the academy relates to the future funding available. The academy mitigates
this risk as far as possible by preparing budgets which are reviewed by the Trustees to ensure that the level of anticipated
funding is sufficient to meet the requirements of the academy. Any shortfall identified is con5|dered by the Trustees and
remedial action taken with a view to balancing the budget.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
ACADEMY IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES 2022/2023

The Academy has 11 main priorities.

1. Develop the scope of the Curriculum

2. Improve of the quality and consistency of PSHE delivery

3. Further standardise pedagogy within ‘The Abbey Lesson'

4. Review planning and delivery of ‘Open' Category Subjects

5. Continue to increase Ebacc uptake

6. Increase the retention of students from KS4 into KS5

7. Improve the focus on student safety and welfare

8. Improve the behaviour of students in unstructured time

9. Improve the monitoring of PSHE and WPD to achieve consistency of delivery

10. Review and improve safeguarding practices and procedures, addressing all OfSTED concerns
11. Improve the quality and frequency of governor monitoring visits to ensure that governors challenge leaders more
robustly to meet their statutory duties

Sixth Form Targets
To maintain the improved attainment in academic and vocational subjects from Summer 2022
The A*-C pass rates in both to be sustained and improved upon.

Year 11 Targets

Progress 8 score above -0.10

More than 30% obtaining a good pass in English and Mathematics
To close the gap for disadvantaged pupils to -0.1 for Progress 8

Attendance Target
To recover to the level pre Covid-19 or at least meeting the national average for secondary schools for the 2022/23
academic year

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's Memorandum
and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The Trustees of The Abbey School
(Faversham) are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company
is known as The Abbey School (Faversham).

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year and up to the date theses accounts are approved, except as noted
are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the academy trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound
up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Trustees' Indemnities

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, every Trustee, officer or auditor of the academy trust shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the academy trust against any liability incurred by them in that capacity in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which they are acquitted or in connection
with any application in which relief is granted to them by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty or
breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the academy trust.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of New Trustees

The members may appoint up to 15 trustees. The members may appoint staff trustees through such a process as they
may determine, provided that the total number of trustees (including the principal) who are employees of the academy
trust does not exceed one third of the total number of trustees.

The Headteacher has been appointed to act as a trustee by the Members of the Trust.

The parent trustees shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the academy. A parent trustee must be a parent of. -
a pupil at the academy at the time of their election. The Board of Trustees shall make all necessary arrangements from
and determine all other matters relating to, an election of parent trustees, including any question of whether a person is a
parent of a registered pupil at the academy. Any election of parent trustees which is contested shall be held by secret
ballot.

Where a vacancy for a parent trustee is required to be filed by election, the Board of Trustees shall take such steps as are
reasonably practical to ensure that every person who is known to them to be a parent of a registered pupil at the academy
is informed of the vacancy and that it is required to be filled by election, informed that he is entitled to stand as a candidate,
and vote at the election, and given an opportunity to do so.

In appointing a Parent Trustee, the Board of Trustees shall appoint a person who is the parent of a registered pupil at the
academy, or where it is not reasonably practical to do so, a person who is the parent of a child of compulsory school age.

The Staff Trustees shall be elected by a secret ballot of all staff employed under a contract of employment or a contract
for services or otherwise engaged to provide services to the academy (excluding the Headteacher). All arrangements for
the calling and the conduct of the election and resolution of questions as to whether any person is an eligible candidate
shall be determined by the Trustees. If a Staff Trustee ceases to work at the academy then he shall be deemed to have
resigned and shall cease to be a Trustee automatically on termination of his work at the academy. Any election of a Staff
Trustee which is contested shall be held by secret ballot.

The Trustees may appoint up to three co-opted Trustees. The Trustees may not co-opt an employee of the academy trust
as a Co-opted Trustee if thereby the number of Trustees who are employees of the academy trust would exceed one third
of the total number of Trustees (including the Headteacher).

The Secretary of State may appoint additional Trustees as he thinks fit if a warning notice has been given to the Trustees
because the standards of performance are unacceptably low, there is a serious breakdown in the way the academy is
managed and the safety of staff and pupils is threatened and following this, the Trustees have failed to comply, or secure
compliance, with the notice to the Secretary of State's satisfaction within the compliance period.

The Secretary of State may also appoint additional Trustees following an inspection by the Chief Inspector in accordance
with the Education Act 2005 the academy trust receives an Ofsted grading which amounts to a drop, either from one
inspection to the next inspection or between any two inspections carried out within a five year period.

The Secretary of State may also appoint further Trustees as he thinks fit if a Special Measures Termination Event occurs.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Organisational Structure

The Trustees are responsible for the strategic direction of the Academy, making major decisions and monitoring the
activities of the Academy. This is achieved through 4 meetings a year of the Full Board of Trustees and meetings of
Committees set up to look at specific areas of the Academy'’s activities. The Trustees are responsible for monitoring the
performance of the Headteacher on a regular basis. The Headteacher is assisted by two Deputy Headteachers and three
Assistant Headteachers. The organisational structure cascades via Senior Leaders and Middle Managers that include
Heads of Department and Heads of Year.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The induction provided for new Trustees is tailored to their existing experience, with training provided on charity,
educational, legal and financial matters as necessary. Copies of the policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budget, plans
and any other necessary documents that they will need to undertake their role as a Trustee will be made available.

On-going training is available through Kent County Council Trustee Services. They provide an annual calendar of training
events in addition to online training that all Trustees can access. Tralnlng sessions for all Trustees are arranged at the
School on appropriate topics, usually once per year.

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
The Trustees will confirm the membership of the Academy's Leadership team and determine the pay ranges applicable -
for each post. The pay range for a vacant leadership post will be determined by the Trustees prior to the post being
advertised. The Trustees will ensure decisions on pay and reward are consistent with the provisions of the STPCD and
take due account of any supplementary guidance issued by the DfE. Pay reviews for Leadership posts will normally be
undertaken by the Appraiser in conjunction with the Headteacher. The Headteacher will advise the Trustees regarding the
pay progression for all members of the Leadership team. The Trustees will consider annually whether to award pay
progression to members of the leadership group who have completed a year of employment since the previous pay
determination. '

Pay reviews will take place as soon as possible after the 1st September but no later than 31st December. In the event of
pay progression being awarded this will take effect from 1st September. Pay decisions will be clearly attributable to the
performance of the individual. In making a determination the pay committee will have regards to:

-The individual's performance as evidenced in the appraisal process.
-The pay recommendation contained within the appraisal report.

Sustained high quality performance should give the individual an expectation of progression up the pay range. The general
expectation for pay progression is as follows:

-Towards the bottom of the pay range - evidence of consistently good leadership practice.
-Towards the top of the pay range - increasingly significant evidence of outstanding leadership practice with all their
practice being consistently good.

Trade Union Facility Time

This information is published in accordance with the provisions of the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements)
Regulations 2017 because the academy trust had a full-ime equivalent employee number of more than 49 throughout the
entirety of any seven of the months within the year ended 31 August 2022.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials Full-time equivalent employee number
during the relevant period

Nil . 151
Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% Nil

1-50% Nil
51-99% Nil

100% Nil
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

: £

Total cost of facility time Nil
_Total pay bill ' 6,997,150

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time calculated as:
(total cost of facility time + total pay bill) x 100 0%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated as:

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by
relevant union officials during the relevant period + total
paid facility time hours) x 100 0%

Related Parties and Other Connected Charities and Organisations
The school has collaborated with the Howard and Aquilla Academy Trusts to share expertise and experience.

EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR
Information relating to events since the end of the year is given in the notes to the financial statements.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN FOR OTHERS
The academy trust and the trustees hold no funds as custodian trustees.

FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the academy is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the academy, and its finances. The Trustees have
implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the operational area (e.g. in relation
to teaching, health and safety, bullying and schooal trips) and in relation to the control of finance. They have introduced
systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and
internal financial controls in order to minimize risk. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they
have adequate insurance cover. The academy has an effective system of intemal financial controls and this is explained
in more detail in the Governance Statement.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risk and uncertainty in respect of the academy relates to the future funding available. The academy mitigates
this risk as far as possible by preparing budgets which are reviewed by the Trustees to ensure that the level of anticipated
funding is sufficient to meet the requirements of the academy. Any shortfall identified is considered by the Trustees and
remedial action taken with a view to balancing the budget.

FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the academy is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the academy, and its finances. The Trustees have
implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the school faces, especially in the operational area (e.g. in relation
to teaching, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in relation to the control of finance. They have introduced
systems, including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school grounds) and
internal financial controls in order to minimize risk. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they
have adequate insurance cover. The academy has an effective system of intemal financial controls and this is explained
in more detail in the Governance Statement.

AUDITORS

In so far as the Trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 5 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

T J Martin - Trustee
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Scope of Responsibility :
As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Abbey School (Faversham) has an

effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather

than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement of loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Govemnance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with
the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Abbey School (Faversham)
and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material
weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Abbey School (Faversham) has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to
the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety
and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Abbey School (Faversham) and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible
for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Trustees'
Responsibilities Statement. The board of trustees has formally met 4 times during the year. Attendance during the year at
meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

The information included on governance here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The full Board of Trustees has formally met 4 times during the period. Attendance
during the period at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Mr T J Martin (Chair)

Dr R H Speller

Mrs M F Rehal

Mrs S L Keeling

Mr D L Shemoon

Mr N R Levitt

Ms L J Brooman

Mrs D Brodkorb (appointed 16.9.21)
Mrs S Best (appointed 30.6.22)

Mrs C Rache (appointed 30.6.22)

Mrs G Johnson (appointed 30.6.22)

Mr K Harper (appainted 30.6.22)

Mr J Speed (resigned 30.6.22)

Mrs J A Landsberg (resigned >
27.4.22)

Mrs L Temple (resigned 20.4.22)

Mrs R Fletcher (resigned 16.12.21)

Dr M Baxter (resigned 16.9.21)
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There have been no changes to the composition of the Board of Trustees since the appointments shown in the Reference
and Administrative details on page 1.

The Trustees are aware of the ESFA's guidance in relation to related party transactions and conflicts of interest. This is
evidenced by the Trustees and senior leadership team completing declaration of interest forms annually and notifying the
company secretary of any changes during the year. At meetings, declarations are made before the commencement of the
agenda for any new related parties which should be identified. The trust also has a robust procurement system in place
over purchasing, with the use of supplier lists and segregation of duties to prevent management override and potential
related party transactions occurring without disclosure internally and to the ESFA.

Governance Reviews . .
The Board have reviewed the effectiveness of the Board and below details the outcome of the review:
During the year the Board of Governors reviewed the following:
- The Statutory Accounts to 31 August 2021
- The Budget for the year to August 2022
- The 3 Year Forecast to August 2025 -
- Insurance renewal
- Pension deficit
- Statutory Policies
- The Risk Register
- - The Quarterly External Compliance reports
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

In addition, the Board of Governors scrutinised and challenged the following:

- The Monthly Management Accounts, monitoring actual income and expenditure against projections and
questioning variances.

- Pay Policy for teachers

- Pay awards for support staff

- Tenders and all expenditure over £10,000

- Enrichment Activities for Students for approval

- Refurbishments to the school site

The Board of Governors is experienced with a wide range of skills that are used effectively in the governance of the
academy. The Board has actively recruited governors with financial and legal backgrounds as they identified this as an
area they wished to improve upon.

Financial data has been presented in a consistent manner for a number of years, so governors are able to access the data
easily and make comparisons with previous periods, identifying variances when they occur. Governors are confident that
they have a good understanding of the academy's financial position in the short and long term and able to make effective
decisions based on this.

The Board of Governors believe that the data they receive from the leadership team is honest and accurate and are
confident that they have a very good understanding of where the academy is meeting its objectives and what aspects need
improvement.

A skills audit is undertaken annually and the results are compiled to give Trustees an understanding of strengths and
weaknesses. This analysis, along with academy improvement priorities, is used in the recruitment of new Trustees.
Following the recent resignation of Trustees, it was decided to recruit additional trustees that would bring a variety of
additional skills, knowledge and experience to add to the considerable experience of the remaining Trustees. The board
has sought to recruit more parents to achieve the correct balance of parent and community trustees. The Trustees have
a Leaming and Development representative to coordinate the training and development of trustees. The next review of -
governance is expected to take place in November/December 2022.

The Full Board consider that, in normal operating conditions, 4 meetings a year, accompanied by the Resource Committee
meetings ensure adequate oversight and strong governance. The board do not consider it necessary at time for the Full
Board to meet more frequently, but will keep this under review on an annual basis.

The Resources Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to effectively plan and monitor
the financial resources of the Academy. Attendance at meetings in the period under review is shown below.

Trustee on Resources/Audit Committees Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Ms L Brooman (Chair of Resources) 4 4
Dr R H Speller 4 4
Mrs J Landsberg (resigned 27.4.22) 1 2
Mr N Levitt 4 4
Mr D Shemoon 0 4
Mr J Speed (resigned 30.6.22) 0 3
Mr T J Martin 3 4
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Resources/Audit Committee Review

The following finance items were reviewed and agreed by the Resources and/or Audit Committee at the three meetings:

- Reviewed the academy's Financial Procedures Manual and all corresponding financial policies for approval by the '
Governing Body.

- Reviewed the academy's one year and three-year budgets.

- Reviewed the budget monitoring reports and associated management reports monitoring the projected out-tum
position.

- Monitored earmarked funds, trading activities and large academy operations, (e.g. catering, sports facilities,
extended school activities, lettings, etc.) ensuring that the allocations are spent in accordance with the recognised
terms and within the allocation set out in the budget.

- Reviewed the three Responsible Officer reports.

- Reviewed the staff structure of the academy.

- Reviewed the financial implications of changes to the staffing structure, numbers and grades, and approved these.

- Reviewed contracts on an on-going basis as part of ensuring the academy continues to achieve 'best value' -
including catering and energy.

- Reviewed the academy's Risk Management Policy and the Risk Register.

Governance Review

A skills audit is undertaken annually and the resuits are compiled to give Trustees an understanding of strengths and
weaknesses. This analysis, along with academy improvement priorities, is used in the recruitment of new Trustees.
Following the recent resignation of Trustees, it was decided to recruit additional trustees that would bring a variety of
additional skills, knowledge and experience to add to the considerable experience of the remaining Trustees. The board
has sought to recruit more parents to achieve the correct balance of parent and community trustees. The Trustees have
a Leaming and Development representative to coordinate the training and development of trustees. The next review of
governance is expected to take place in November/December 2022.

The Full Board consider that, in normal operating conditions, 4 meetings a year, accompanied by the Resource Committee
meetings ensure adequate oversight and strong governance. Throughout the Covid-19 epidemic, all full board and sub-
committee meetings have been held on Microsoft Teams. Information has been presented on Teams in advance and all
discussion and decisions taken have been minuted by the clerk as usual. Named governors were identified to authorise
expenditure on essential services and equipment to support the students' home learning and safe return to school following
lockdown.

Review of Value for Money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. The accounting officer considers how the
academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the
Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. -
The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year, with the following
activities as examples:

- Trustees considered tenders from four Catering Providers to revitalise school lunches, ensuring value for money for
parents and carers
- Trustees considered tenders for Audit Services in line with Government instructions to review existing arrangements
and compare with other providers to ensure a high quality of service and value for money.
- At the end of contract, Trustees reviewed energy providers in light of current price increases to ensure that cost
would be fixed for 3 years to ensure value for money and accuracy of budgeting going forward.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and
the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal
control has been in place in The Abbey School (Faversham)) for the period from 31 August 2021 to 31 August 2022 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that
there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's significant risks that has been
in place for the period from 31 August 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework
The academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular,
it includes:
- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are
reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
- regular reviews by the Resources Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
- delegation of authority and segregation of duties; and
- identification and management of risks.

The ‘Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to appoint an
internal auditor. However, the Trustees have appointed Baxter and Co, a company independent of the Academy's auditor,
to perform additional checks on behalf of the internal reviewer. The internal reviewer on the Board of Trustees is Ms L
Brooman. The internal reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the period included the testing and review of:

- payroll and personnel systems;

- purchase processing systems and tendering procedures;
- completeness of ESFA income;

- completeness of other income;

- sales processing and debtors ledger;

- balance sheet control accounts;

- expense claims; and

- petty cash reconciliations

Three times a year, the internal reviewer takes the auditor's reports to the Board of Trustees concerning the operation of
the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities. The Board of Trustees
confirms that the internal reviewer function has been fully delivered in line with the ESFA's requirements and that no
material internal control issues were identified during those visits.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Review of Effectiveness :
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal reviewer;

- the work of the external auditor; and

- the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of any review of the system of internal control by
the Resources Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 5§ December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022 -

As accounting officer of The Abbey School (Faversham) | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non--
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement in place
between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard
to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds
by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust's
funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If
any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

As Accounting Officer of The Abbey School (Faversham) | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy trust's
funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date.

If any instances agé€)identi r the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

Date: 5 Decembiar 2022
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees (who act as govemors of The Abbey School (Faversham) and are also the directors of the charitable company
for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in
accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the trustees
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and
expenditure, of the charitable company for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the trustees are required
to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company
and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities. ‘

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

In so far as the trustees are aware:
- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware; and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 5 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

T J Martin - Trustee
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

Opinion : :

We have audited the financial statements of The Abbey School (Faversham) (the 'academy trust) for the year ended
31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA).

in our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work that we have performed we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast doubt on the academy trusts ability to continue as a going concern up to the point
of transfer of The Abbey School out of the Abbey School (Faversham) Trust into a new Multi Academy Trust (see the
emphasis of matter below).

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern ae described in the relevant
sections of the report.

Emphasis of matter - subsequent event

We draw attention to note 30 to the financial statements which describes a decision by the Regional School Commissioner
to transfer the academy known as The Abbey School out of The Abbey School (Faversham) Trust into another multi
academy trust. This is due to take place by May 2023. Once the transfer has occurred the members will seek to wind .
up The Abbey School (Faversham) Trust. As referred to in the conclusions relating to going concem paragraph the
financial statements have still been prepared on the going concern basis as explained in note 1. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
trustees’ annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Other information includes the
report of the trustees (incorporating the strategic report and the directors' report), the governance statement, and the
Accounting Officer's statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is

consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Trustees' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the report of the trustees (incorporating the strategic report and the directors' report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowmg matters where the Companies Act 2006.requires us to report to you

if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountlng records -and retums; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- the trustees were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement to prepare a
Strategic Report or in preparing the trustees' Report.

"Responsibilities of trustees
As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud

and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

- the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations; .

- we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with directors and our
experience of the sector;

- we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the academy trust, including, but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006,
UK tax legislation;

- we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making enquiries of
management; and

- identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained alert to
instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining

an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

- making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of
actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

- considering the intemal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we;

- performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

- tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

- assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in note 1
were indicative of potential bias; and

- investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures which
included, but were not limited to;

- agreeing financial statements disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

- reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

- enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

- reviewing correspondence with HMRC and the relevant regulator.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and regulations are
from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards also
limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the Committee of
Management and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Material
misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they may involve deliberate
concealment or collusion.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of the Independent
Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy trust's members
as a body, fg oﬁr audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Clair Rayner FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of McCabe Ford Williams
Statutory Auditors and Chartered Accountants
Bank Chambers

1 Central Avenue

Sittingbourne

Kent

ME10 4AE

Daté: 5 December 2022
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM) AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 17 September 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
The Abbey School (Faversham) during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financiat transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Abbey School (Faversham) and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Abbey School (Faversham) and the ESFA
those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Abbey School (Faversham) and the ESFA, for our work, for
this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Abbey School (Faversham)'s accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Abbey School (Faversham)'s funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out
our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations
in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a
reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. Our engagement includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the academy trust's income and
expenditure. The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

- Review of the internal control environment which is designed to ensure compliance with regulations;

- Review of the accounting officer's consideration of issues surrounding regularity, propriety and compliance;

- Review of the work and reports of the internal reviewer during the period;

- Review of governance arrangements and procedures and related compliance with the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook, including the distribution of management accounts and quantity of meetings.

- Analytical procedures regarding declaration of potential conflicts of interest by key staff and the governing body;

- Review of fixed asset transactions against the requirements of the funding agreement between The Abbey School

(Faversham) and the Secretary of State and the Academies Financial Handbook;

- Testing of grants and other income for application in accordance with the terms and requirements attached;

- Review of the academy trust's activities to check they are in line with the Academies Framework and the academy
trust's charitable objectives;

- Review of bank statements and financial transactions for indications of any items which may be improper;

- Review of bank accounts to check that they are operated within the terms of the academy trust's governing
document and borrowing limits imposed by the funding agreement are not exceeded:;

- Testing of expenditure, including expense claims for signs of transactions for personal benefit;

- Review of any extra-contractual payments made to staff;

- Review of procurement activity during the period.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM) AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year ended 31 August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by -
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

(N o) UAAAN

McCabe Ford Williams
Chartered Accountants
Reporting Accountant
Bank Chambers

1 Central Avenue
Sittingbourne

Kent

ME10 4AE

Date: 5 December 2022
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

{INCORPORATING AN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

31.8.22 31.8.21
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted fixed general Total Total
fund assets funds funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS
FROM ‘
Donations and capital grants 2 - 24,382 6,440 30,822 4,160,795
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's
educational operations 3 - - 8,309,082 8,309,082 7,806,469
Academy's sport centre
operations 111,823 - - 111,823 36,753
Other trading activities 4 21,190 - 15,989 37,179 62,881
Investment income 5 122 - - 122 160
Total 133,135 24,382 8,331,511 8,489,028 12,067,058
EXPENDITURE ON
Raising funds 8 8,059 - 47,319 55,378 24,095
Charitable activities
Academy’s educational
operations 9 1,671 691,199 8,597,464 9,290,334 9,076,900
Academy's sport centre
operations 106,075 - - 106,075 36,478
Total 115,805 691,199 8,644,783 9,451,787 9,137,473
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) 17,330 (666,817) (313,272) (962,759) 2,929,585
Transfers between funds 25 - 13,310 (13,310) - -
Other recognised
gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on
defined benefit schemes - - 4,698,000 4,698,000 (293,000)
Net movement in funds 17,330 (653,507) 4,371,418 3,735,241 2,636,585
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 216,164 16,136,046 (4,230,102) 12,122,108 9,485,523

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
(INCORPORATING AN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

. 31.8.22 31.8.21
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted fixed general Total Total
fund ) assets funds funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD 233,494 15,482,539 141,316 15,857,349 12,122,108

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM) (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697086)

BALANCE SHEET
31 AUGUST 2022
31.8.22 31.8.21

Notes £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 18 15,509,089 16,027,748
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 19 200,431 625,039
Cash at bank and in hand 1,199,144 477,018

1399575 1,102,057

CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 20 (407,075) (279,147)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 992,500 822,910
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 16,501,589 16,850,658
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one year 21 (53,240) (66,550)
PENSION LIABILITY 26 (591,000)  (4,662,000)
NET ASSETS 15,857,349 12,122,108

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM) (REGISTERED NUMBER: 07697086

BALANCE SHEET - continued
31 AUGUST 2022

FUNDS 25

Restricted funds:
General Annual Grant : 653,626 314,598
Other restricted grants

462 -

School Voluntary Fund 54,005 93,002
Education Funding Agency 23,623 -
Pension fund (591,000) (4,662,000)
Fixed asset funds 11,827,892 12,289,163
Funding from the EFA - 172,456
Other Government 600 -
Other Restricted Capital Grant 40,000 40,000
Donation of other assets 3,614,647 3,658,725

15,623,855 11,905,944

Unrestricted funds:
General Fund 233,494 216,164

TOTAL FUNDS ‘ 15,857,349 12,122,108

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees and authorised for issue on 5 December 2022 and were
signed on its behalf by:

T J Martin - Trustee

~ The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 1

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Capital grants from DfE/EFA

Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan repayments in year

Net cash used in financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in
the reporting period :

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the reporting period

31822 31.8.21
£ £

710,932 (207,107)
710,932 (207,107)
24,382 392,014
122 160
24,504 392,174
(13,310) (13,310)
(13310) (13,310)
722,126 171,757
477,018 305261
1,199,144 477,018

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. RECONCILIATION OF NET (EXPENDITURE)/INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting period (as per the
Statement of Financial Activities) (962,759) 2,929,585
Adjustments for:
Depreciation charges 518,659 456,013
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA’ (24,382) (392,014)
Interest received (122) (160)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance 74,000 60,000
Defined benefit pension scheme admin 3,000 3,000
Donated assets included in income - (3,768,251)
Donated assets in revenue expenditure - 68,251
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 424,608 (58,750)
Increase in creditors 127,928 86,219
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 550,000 409,000
Net cash provided by/(used in) operations 710,932 (207,107)
2 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS
At1.9.21 Cash flow At31.8.22
£ £ £
Net cash
Cash at bank and in hand 477,018 722,126 1,199,144
477,018 722,126 1,199,144
Debt
Debts falling due within 1 year (13,310) - (13,310)
Debts falling due after 1 year (66,550) 13,310 (53,240)
(79,860) 13,310 (66,550)
735,436 1,132,594

Total 397,158

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2019)', Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Academies
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Abbey School (Faversham) meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue
as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date
of approval of the financial statements.

The Board of Trustees is confident that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. In the financial year 2022/23, despite a reduction in 6th Form numbers, the
academy has received a significant rise in funding as increased numbers of students are moving into Year 7 and
Key Stage 4, as well as support from the Local Authority with regards to basic needs.

However, as a result of an OFSTED inspection in May 2022, the academy received an ‘inadequate’ judgement for
concemns regarding safeguarding. The Regional Director issued a Warning Notice stating that, unless they are
satisfied that the trust has capacity to deliver rapid and sustainable improvement, they would consider terminating
the academy's funding agreement in order to transfer the academy to an altemative trust.

The school made written representation to the Regional Director in October 2022 concerning the progress that had
been made to address the concems that OFSTED had raised. The Regional Director concluded that the
improvements made could only be sustained in their opinion with the support of another strong Multi Academy
Trust. They concluded that The Abbey School should be transferred out of The Abbey School (Faversham) trust
into another MAT by May 2023. The Board of Trustees on 16 November 2022 voted to support the transfer decision.
Once the Abbey School has been transferred out of the trust the Trustees will wind up the company. For this reason
the trustees have prepared the financial statement on a basis other than that of Going Concern. This has not
however had an impact on the carrying value of assets because the assets and liabilities of the trust will be gifted
to the new multi academy trust at their carrying values at the date of transfer as The Abbey School’s activities will
continue uninterrupted.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Critical accounting estimates and assumptlons - continued

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which
are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach
which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the
actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the
roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The net book value of leasehold property, included within fixed assets, is based on assumptions in relation to the
useful life of property and the residual value of the assets. The element of leasehold property which relates to land
is deemed not to have a finite life and is not depreciated. The element of leasehold property which does not relate
to land is depreciated over the estimated life of the individual buildings, and it is assumed that the asset has no
residual value. Any changes in these assumptions will have an impact on the carrying amount of fixed assets.

Critical areas of judgement
The trustees do not consider there to be any critical areas of judgement, other than those relating to estimation
above, which have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the academy trust has entitlement to the
funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received
for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional
entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued. :

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of '
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income

Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the academy
trust has provided the goods or services.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Donated fixed assets
Donated Fixed assets are measured at fair value as a donation and a corresponding amount is recognised with in
fixed assets and depreciated over the useful economic life of the asset.

Donated Consumables
Donated consumables are measured at fair value as a donation and a corresponding expense is recognised with
in expenditure.

Leasehold property donated

The land and buildings from which the academy operates are leased from Kent County Council for a period of 125
years. Rentals payable in respect of this lease are one peppercorn per annum. Under the terms of the lease the
risks and rewards of ownership have been substantially transferred to The Abbey School (Faversham) and
accordingly to reflect its use, the value of the property has been included in fixed assets with an appropriate credit
to voluntary income within the Statement of Financial Activities in the year it was donated.

Expenditure _ '

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up
of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs atributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.

-Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

-Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible fixed assets

Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off the cost less estimated residual value of
each asset over its estimated useful life.

Leasehold property - over the remaining life of the individual buildings
Leasehold land - over the remaining term of the lease

3G artificial pitch - straight line over 20 years

Improvements to Property - over the life of the improvement

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from
the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the related asset
on a basis consistent with the academy's depreciation policy. '
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets - continued
Assets in the course of construction are mcluded at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 19. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Cash at bank - is classified as
a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Cash at bank - classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 20 and 21. Taxation and sacial security are not included in the financial
instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement
has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or other financial instrument.

Agency Arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA
and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the trust
does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the allocation
towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the academy
is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by
Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992,
to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of the charitable
objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees. Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to
be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the Education Funding Agency where the asset acquired or
created is held for a specific purpose. Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and
include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency and Kent County Council. Designated funds
comprise 3G sports pitch maintenance costs.

Hire purchase and leasing commitments

Rentals in respect of operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which
they are incurred.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS')
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary
on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-
employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a
defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they
relate.

~ The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial
valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to
operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability
is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit
obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets
at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interestincome on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised
gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle
the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

2. DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Other donations 6,440 3,768,781
Capital Grants. 24,382 392,014

30,822 4,160,795

Included within other donations is £nif (2021: £3,768,251) of donated assets gifted by the DfE.

Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
ESFA Capital 24,382 392,014
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

3. FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

31.8.22 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ : £ £ £

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant - 6,095,889 6,095,889 6,280,253
Other DfE/ESFA Grants .- 265,753 265,753 197,199
Pupil Premium - 340,561 340,561 317,381
Teachers Pension Grant - 27,746 27,746 227197
Academies Prog. Funding - 657,977 657,977 -

- 7,387,926 7,387,926 7,022,030

Other Government grant
Local authority grants - 921,156 921,156 677,769
COVID-19 Additional Funding (DfE / ESFA)s
Other DfE / ESFA COVID-19 Funding - ‘ - - 20,990
. Catch up premium - - - 85,680
- 921,156 921,156 784,439

- 8,309,082 8,309,082 7,806,469

The academy received Nil (2021:£20,990) of funding for catch up premium and costs incurred in respect of this
funding totalled Nil (2021: £20,990).

16 to 19 funding which in previous years has been included the General Annual Grant statement has been: .

reclassified in 2021/22 in line with the Annual Funding letter for the academic year 2021 to 2022 dated 2 March
2021. The total amount for this funding in 2021/22 is £663,577 split as, £657,997 for Academies Programme
Funding (included as a material fund) and £5,600 for High Value Courses Premium Acads (included within other
DfE/ESFA grants). The 2020/21 figures do not require reclassification as these amounts are inline with the Annual
Funding letter for the academic year 2020 to 2021.
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

4, OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Fundraising events 1,722 20,988
School trip income 5,208 130
Other income 19,069 33,590
Facilities and Services 11,180 8,173
37,179 62,881
5. INVESTMENT INCOME
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Deposit account interest 122 160
6. INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES ,
31.8.22 31.8.21
Academy's
sport Academy's :
centre educational Total Total
operations operations activities activities
£ £ £ £
Sports centre income 111,823 - 111,823 36,753
Grants - 8,309,082 8,309,082 7,806,469
111,823 8,309,082 8,420,905 7,843,222
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
31.8.22 - 31.8.21
£ £
General Annual Grant 6,095,889 6,280,253
Other DfE/ESFA Grants 247,726 197,199
Local authority grants 921,156 677,769
Pupil Premium 340,561 317,381
Teachers Pension Grant 27,746 227,197
Other DfE / ESFA COVID-19 Funding - 20,990
Catch up premium - 85,680
Academies Prog. Funding 657,977 -
8,291,055 7,806,469
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

EXPENDITURE ,
31.8.22 31.8.21
Non-pay expenditure
Staff Other
costs Premises costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Raising funds
Costs of fundraising )
Direct costs - - 55,378 55,378 24,095
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations
Direct costs 5,608,107 - 1,185,399 6,793,506 6,565,596
Allocated support costs 1,333,911 654,681 508,236 2,496,828 2,511,304
6,942,018 654,681 1,749,013 9,345,712 9,100,995
Net income/(expenditure) is stated after charging/(crediting):
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Depreciation - owned assets 518,659 456,012
Hire of plant and machinery - 75,407 75,407
RAISING FUNDS
Costs of fundraising
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Educational visits 13,342 1,275
Staff related activities 8,059 5,079
Pupil related activities 33,977 17,741
55,378 24,095
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THE ABBEY SCHOOL (FAVERSHAM)

10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Direct costs
Support costs

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES COSTS

Academy's sport centre operations
Academy's educational operations

31.8.22 31.8.21
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
- 6,793,506 6,793,506 6,565,596
1,671 2,495,157 2,496,828 2,511,304
1,671 9,288,663 9,290,334 9,076,900
31.8.22 31.8.21
Total Total
£ £
1,333,911 1,113,429
51,866 45,601
2,591 1,844
654,681 978,673
440,066 358,804
13,713 12,953
2,496,828 2,511,304
Direct Support
Costs (see costs (see
note 11) note 12) Totals
£ £ £
39,134 66,941 106,075
6,793,506 2,496,828 9,290,334
6,832,640 2,563,769 9,396,409
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

DIRECT COSTS OF CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Teaching and educational support staff
Technology costs

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Staff development

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Depreciation

SUPPORT COSTS

Academy's sport centre operations
Academy's educational operations

Support costs, included in the above, are as follows:

Management

Wages

Social security

Pensions

Hire of plant and machinery
Technology costs
Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Rent and rates

Energy costs

Insurance

Security and transport

~ Catering

Depreciation of tangible and heritage assets
Expected return on pension sch

" Carried forward

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
5,647,241 5,433,756
146,758 211,319
156,279 107,586
93,177 97,227
80,159 76,449
21,139 21,430
221,094 207,417
466,793 410,412
6,832,640 6,565,596
Governance
Management costs Totals
£ £ £
66,661 280 66,941
2,483,115 13,713 2,496,828
2,549,776 13,993 2,563,769
31.8.22 31.8.21
Academy's
sport Academy's
centre educational Total Total
operations operations activities activities
£ £ £ £
12,860 630,155 643,015 577,402
914 44,803 45,717 38,164
2,224 658,953 661,177 504,979
1,508 73,899 75,407 75,407
53 2,591 2,644 1,863
253 12,410 12,663 5,657
40,877 423,470 464,347 746,398
1,198 76,738 77,936 79,819
1,998 98,089 100,087 104,890
783 38,390 39,173 40,224
84 4,112 4,196 17,265
- 99,496 99,496 89,854
- 51,866 51,866 45,601
- - - (75,000)
62,752 2,214,972 2,277,724 2,252,523
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12. SUPPORT COSTS - continued

Management - continued

31.8.22 31.8.21
Academy's

sport Academy's :

centre educational - Total Total
operations operations activities activities

£ £ £ £

Brought forward 62,752 2,214,972 2,277,724 2,252,523
Interest on pension scheme lia ’ - 74,000 74,000 135,000
Other costs 3,909 194,143 198,052 147,306

- 66,661 2,483,115 2,549,776 2,534,829

Governance costs
31.8.22 31.8.21
Academy's
sport Academy's
centre educational Total Total
operations operations activities activities
‘ £ £ £ £
Auditors' remuneration 280 13,713 13,993 12,953
13. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
31.08.22 31.03.21
Auditors' remuneration
- Audit of financial statements 7,873 6,835
- Auditors’ remuneration - Non audit services 1,760 1,198
Accounts return 925 840
EOYC Audit : ' 750 © 500
Internal Audit system checks 2,685 3,580
13,993 12,953

The external auditors, McCabe Ford Williams, did not provide the service of Internal Scrufiny checks for the
2021/22 financial year, this service was provided by Baxter & Co.
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14.  STAFF COSTS

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Wages and salaries 4,763,896 4,661,783

Social security costs 455,034 420,957

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,586,979 1,397,129
, 6,805,909 6,479,869

Supply teacher costs 159,968 40,891
Compensation payments 31,273 33,541
6,997,150 6,554,301

Non-statutory / non-contractual staff severance payments
The academy trust paid 1 (2021:3) severance payment in the year, disclosed in the following bands:

31.08.22 31.08.21
£0 - £25,000 - 3
£25,001 - £50,000 1 -
Included in staff restructuring costs are 1 non-contractual severance payment totalling £31,273 (2021: £33,541).

Staff numbers

The average Full Time Equivalent of persons (including senior management team) employed by the academy
during the year expressed as head count and full time equivalents were as follows:

31.08.22 31.08.21

Charitable activities : FTE FTE
Teachers and educational support 113 113
Administration and support 29 29
Management 7 6
Sports centre staff 2 2
Totals 151 150

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the academy trust during the

year was as follows:

Teachers and educational support
Administration and support
Management

Sports centre staff

31.8.22
131
40
7
4

182
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STAFF COSTS - continued

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

31.8.22 31.8.21
£60,001 - £70,000 4 4
£70,001 - £80,000 1 .
£100,001 - £110,000 1 1

_6 ]

The above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme and Local Government Pension Scheme.
During the period ended 31 August 2022, pension contributions for these staff amounted to £94,359 (2021:
£83,538).

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £713,160 (2021: £619,828)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

The Headteacher and Staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the
roles of Headteacher and staff and not in respect of their services as Trustees. Other Trustees did not receive any
payments, from the academy in respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustees' remuneration was as
follows: :

Dr R Speller (Headteacher, Accounting Officer and trustee):
Remuneration £100,000 - £110,000 (2021: £100,000 - £110,000)
Employers Pension Contributions £20,000 - £25,000 (2021: £20,000 - £25,000)

Mrs R Fletcher (staff trustee) resigned 16/12/2021:
Remuneration £10,000 - £15,000 (2021: £40,000 - £45,000)
Employers Pension Contributions £0 - £5,000 (2021: £10,000 - £15,000)

Mrs L Temple (staff trustee) resigned 20/4/2022:
Remuneration £35,000 - £40,000 (2021: £30,000 - £35,0001)
Employers Pension Contributions £5,000 - £10,000 (2021: £Nil)

During the year ended 31 August 2022, travel and subsistence expenses of £Nil were reimbursed to trustees (year
ended 2021:£Nil)
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16.  TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this insurance is included Governance
costs and totals £130 (2021: £130).

17.  COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Restricted Restricted ,
Unrestricted fixed general Total
fund assets funds funds
£ £ £ £
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM
Donations and capital grants 500 4,160,265 30 4,160,795

Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's educational

operations - - 7,806,469 7,806,469
Academy's sport centre operations 36,753 - - 36,753
~ Other tréding activities A 15,870 - 47,011 62,881
Investment income 160 - - 160
Total 53,283 4,160,265 7,853,510 12,067,058
EXPENDITURE ON
Raising funds 5,079 - 19,016 24,095
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations 46,461 999,241 8,031,198 9,076,900
Academy's sport centre operations 36,478 - - 36,478
Total 88,018 999,241 8,050,214 9,137,473
NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) - (34,735) 3,161,024 (196,704) 2,929,585
Transfers between funds : - 13,310 (13,310) -

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit

schemes - - - (293,000) (293,000)
Net movement in funds = (34,735) 3,174,334 (503,014) 2,636,585
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS |

Total funds brought forward 250,899 12,966,010 (3,751,386) 9,485,523
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

COMPARATIVES FOR THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - continued

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST
At 1 September 2021 and 31 August 2022

DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2021
Charge for year

At 31 August 2022

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2022

At 31 August 2021

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors

Other debtors

VAT

Prepayments and accrued income

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted fixed general Total
fund assets funds funds
£ £ £ £
216,164 16,160,344 (4,254,400) 12,122,108
Leasehold 3G
property artificial Long
and land pitch leasehold Totals
£ £ £ £
18,482,226 671,733 1,118,044 20,272,003
3,614,009 302,287 327,958 4,244 255
440,350 33,587 44,722 518,659
4,054,359 335,874 372,681 4,762,914
14,427,867 335,859 745,363 15,509,089
14,868,217 369,446 790,085 16,027,748
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
4,668 19,928
1,320 -
63,684 94,418
130,759 510,693
200,431 625,039
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20. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Other loans (see note 22) 13,310 13,310
Trade creditors 136,596 1,013
Social security and other taxes ' ' 117,477 111,476
Other creditors ‘ 52,164 . 20,710
Accruals and deferred income 87,528 132,638
407,075 279,147
DEFERRED INCOME
31.8.22 31.8.21
. £ £
Deferred income at 1 September 2021 32,649 30,968
Resources deferred in the year 8,418 32,649
Amounts released from previous periods (32,649) (30,968)
Deferred income at 31 August 2022 8,418 32,649

£Nil (2021: £24,081) is in respect of ESFA funding for rates received in advance, and £Nil (2021:£7,723) relating
to kits and clothing and £8,418 (2021: £845) of other income.

21. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Other loans (see note 22) 53,240 66,550
22. LOANS
An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below:
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Amounts falling due within one year on demand:
Other loans 13,310 13,310
Amounts falling between one and two years: :
Other loans - 1-2 years 13,310 13,310
Amounts falling due between two and five years:
Other loans - 2-5 years 39,930 53,240

A loan above which was originally for £106,480 from the Salix Energy Efficiency Fund has been brought forward.
The interest free loan is repayable over 8 years in 16 bi-annual repayments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the academy trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be a member.

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

31.8.22
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted fixed general Total
fund assets funds funds
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets - 15,509,089 - 15,509,089
Current assets 239,393 65,575 1,094,607 1,399,575
Current liabilities - (5,899) (38,885) (362,291) (407,075)
Long term liabilities - (53,240) - (53,240)
Pension liability - - (591,000) (591,000)
233,494 15,482,539 141,316 15,857,349
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
31.8.21
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted fixed general Total
fund assets funds funds
£ £ £ £
Fixed assets - 16,027,748 - 16,027,748
Current assets 216,211 432,014 453,832 1,102,057
~ Current liabilities (47) (232,868) (46,232) (279,147)
Long term liabilities - (66,550) - (66,550)
Pension liability - - (4,662,000) (4,662,000)
216,164 16,160,344 (4,254,400) 12,122,108
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant
Other restricted grants

School Voluntary Fund

Education Funding Agency
Pension fund

Fixed asset funds

Funding from the EFA

Other Government

Other Restricted Capital Grant

Donation of other assets

- Unrestricted fund

General Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Net Transfers

movement _between At
At1.9.21 in funds funds 31.8.22

£ £ £ £
338,896 328,040 (13,310) 653,626
- 462 - - 462
93,002 (38,997) - 54,005
- 23,623 - 23,623
(4,662,000) 4,071,000 - (591,000)
12,289,163 (474,581) 13,310 11,827,892
148,158 (148,158) - -
- "~ 600 - 600
40,000 - - 40,000
3,658,725 (44,078) - 3,614,647
11,905,944 3,717,911 - 15,623,855
216,164 17,330 - 233,494
12,122,108 3,735,241 - 15,857,349
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25. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 6,104,471 (5,776,431) - 328,040
Other restricted grants 13,904 (13,442) - 462
School Voluntary Fund 13,847 (52,844) - (38,997)
Education Funding Agency 293,499 (269,876) - 23,623
Pupil Premium 340,561 (340,561) - -
Pension fund - (627,000) 4,698,000 4,071,000
Fixed asset funds - (474,581) - (474,581)
Funding from the EFA 24,382 (172,540) - (148,158)
Other Government 907,252 (906,652) - 600
Donation of other assets - (44,078) - (44,078)
Academies Prog. Funding 657,977 (657,977) - -
8,355,893 (9,335,982) 4,698,000 3,717,911

Unrestricted fund
General Fund 133,135 . (115,805) - 17,330
TOTAL FUNDS 8,489,028 (9,451,787) 4,698,000 3,735,241
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Comparatives for movement in funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant

School Voluntary Fund
Pension fund

Fixed asset funds

Funding from the EFA

Other Restricted Capital Grant
Donation of other assets

Unrestricted fund
General Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Net Transfers
movement between At
At1.9.20 in funds funds 31.8.21
£ £ £ £
61,476 266,432 (13,310) 314,598
84,138 8,864 - 93,002
(3,897,000) (765,000) - (4,662,000)
12,690,591 (414,738) 13,310 12,289,163
255,419 (82,963) - 172,456
40,000 - - 40,000
- 3,658,725 - 3,658,725
9,234,624 2,671,320 - 11,905,944
250,899 (34,735) - 216,164
9,485,523 2,636,585 - 12,122,108
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant
Other restricted grants

School Voluntary Fund
Education Funding Agency
Pupil Premium

Pension fund

Fixed asset funds

Funding from the EFA
Other Government
Donation of other assets
Teachers Pension Grant
Catch up premium

Other Dft / ESFA COVID-19 Funding

Unrestricted fund
General Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement
resources expended losses in funds
£ £ £ £
6,280,856 (6,014,424) - 266,432
74,510 (74,510) - -
26,268 (17,404) - 8,864
197,199 (197,199) - -
317,381 (317,381) - -
- (472,000) (293,000) (765,000)
- (414,738) - (414,738)
392,014 (474,977) - (82,963)
623,429 (623,429) - -
3,768,251 (109,526) - 3,658,725
227,197 (227,197) - -
85,680 (85,680) - -
20,990 (20,930) - -
12,013,775 (9,049,455) (293,000) 2,671,320
53,283 (88,018) - (34,735)
12,067,058 (9,137,473) (293,000) 2,636,585

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the secretary of state, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on the amount
of GAG that it could carry forward on 31 August 2022.

Other restricted general funds

Funding is provided by Government grants in addition to the GAG which must be used for the provision of education
for special needs purposes and other specified activities. There was no fund balance carried forward as at 31

August 2022.

Restricted fixed asset funds

Funding is provided by way of Government grants or capital expenditure from the GAG in order to acquire specified
fixed assets for use by the academy in achieving its educational objectives. A one-off transfer of buildings and

other fixed assets previously in use by The Abbey School occurred upon conversion to an academy.

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds can be used for any purpose at the discretion of the academy.
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MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Transfers between funds A
A transfer of £13,310 was made from GAG to the restricted fixed asset fund to cover the Salix loan repayments
during the year.

School voluntary fund
The school voluntary fund has a carried forward balance of £54,005. This balance includes £500 for the sixth form
prom, £11,183 for Erasmus Project and £7,969 for Breakfast Club.

Designated funds

Funds of £200,000 remain designated to the 3G sports pitch maintenance, the Football Association has confirmed
that where losses have been incurred these can be covered by the transfer from the sinking fund. Other designated
funds include £10,095 Sports England, £4,842 Youth Sports Trust, £1,392 Dancathon, £278 for the English
Reading Challenge and £537 for KCC Transport Innovation.

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-

teaching staff, which is managed by Kent County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 énd of the LGPS to the period
ended 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' pension scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Reguiations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage

of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued
Valuation of the teachers’ pension scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of
£22,000 million

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including
earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £712,197 (2021 - £706,010).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £416,000 (2021 - £361,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £327,000 (2021 - £280,000). and employees' contributions totalled £89,000 (2021
- £81,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 22.50 per cent for employers and 5.50 per cent for
employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of

an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Current service cost 877,000 689,000
Net interest from net defined benefit
asset/fliability 74,000 60,000
Past service cost - -
Administration expenses 3,000 3,000
954,000 752,000
Actual return on plan assets 91,000 72,000
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Defined benefit
pension plans
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 10,172,000 8,475,000
Current service cost : 877,000 689,000
Contributions by scheme participants 89,000 81,000
Interest cost - 168,000 135,000
Benefits paid (64,000 . (101,000)
Remeasurements:
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions (203,000) (107,000)
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in .
financial assumptions : (5,234,000) 1,157,000
Experience loss/(gain) on
obligation ’ 573,000 (157,000)

6,378,000 10,172,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
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26. PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Opening fair value of scheme assets 5,510,000 4,578,000
Contributions by employer 327,000 280,000
Contributions by scheme participants 89,000 81,000
Expected return : 94,000 75,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) (3,000) (3,000)
Benefits paid (64,000) (101,000)
Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income) . (166,000) 600,000

5,787,000 5,510,000

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
31.8.22 31.8.21
: £ £
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
demographic assumptions 203,000 107,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in
financial assumptions 5,234,000 (1,157,000)
Experience loss/(gain) on
obligation ’ (573,000) 157,000
Return on plan assets (excluding interest
income) (166,000) 600,000

4,698,000 (293,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

26. PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

The major categories of scheme assets as amounts of total scheme assets are as follows:

Defined benefit
pension plans
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £

Equities 3,793,000 3,607,000
Gilts : 33,000 31,000
Other Bonds 765,000 765,000
Property 681,000 566,000
Cash 98,000 158,000
Absolute return fund 417,000 383,000

5,787,000 5,510,000

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

‘ 31.8.22 31.8.21
Discount rate 4.25% 1.65%
Future salary increases 3.95% 3.90%
Future pension increases ' 2.95% 2.90%
Price Increases 2.95% 2.90%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50.00% 50.00%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today :
Males ' 21 216
Females 235 23.6
Retiring in 20 years

Males 223 229
Females : 249 251
Sensitivity analysis

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £

Discount rate +0.1% 6,236,000 9,940,000
Discount rate -0.1% 6,523,000 10,409,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 6,566,000 10,583,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 6,196,000 9,777,000
CPl rate +0.1% S 6,515,000 10,191,000
CPlrate -0.1% 6,244,000 10,153,000

The sensitivities regarding the-principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities, as provided by the
actuary, are set out below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS - continued

increase in obligation at 31 Increase in obligation at

August 2022 31 August 2021
£ £
0.1% decrease in real discount rate 145,000 237,000
1 year increase in member life expectancy 188,000 411,000
0.1% increase in salary increase rate 10,000 19,000
0.1% increase in pension increase rate 137,000 216,000
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Contracted but not provided for in the financial statements 11,905 155,545

The capital commitments are in relation to roof works.
LONG-TERM COMMITMENTS, INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31.8.22 31.8.21
£ £
Within one year 82,199 83,125
Between one and five years 58,452 128,963
140,651 212,088

The land and buildings are leased for one peppercom per annum.
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

J Levitt, Daughter of N Levitt, a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a teacher. J Levitt's appointment was
made in open competition and N Levitt was not involved in the decision-making pracess regarding appointment. J
Levitt is paid within the normai pay scale for her role (2022: £13,920, 2021: £Nil) and receives no special treatment
as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academies

* Financial Handbook, including notifying ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their

approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures
refating to connected and related party transactions.

An Apple iPad was valued at resale cost of £40 - £45 and was sold to a staff member for £41 during the financial
year. Included in the accounts is £41 (2021: £600) for the sale of this computer equipment to staff.

Total related party transactions during the year totalled £13,961 (2021: £600).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

30.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

As a result of an OFSTED inspection in May 2022, the academy received an 'inadequate’ judgement for concerns
regarding safeguarding. The Regional Director issued a Waming Notice stating that, unless they are satisfied that
the trust has capacity to deliver rapid and sustainable improvement, they would consider terminating the academy's
funding agreement in order to transfer the academy to an alternative trust.

The school made written representation to the Regional Director in October 2022 concerning the progress that had
been made to address the concems that OFSTED had raised. The Regional Director concluded that the
improvements made could only be sustained in their opinion with the support of another strong Multi Academy
Trust. They concluded that the Abbey School should be transferred out of The Abbey School (Faversham) trust
into another MAT by May 2023. The Board of Trustees on 16 November 2022 voted to support the transfer decision.

31.  AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. At the beginning of the
accounting period there were Bursary funds brought forward of £20,709. The Academy also received a further
£23,262 during the year. Disbursements during the year amounted to £16,040 which included admin fees of £412.
An amount of £27,931 is included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds of which, £4,670 are repayable
to ESFA. : '
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